
Addendum #2, posted 7/15/15 

RFP#15-040-52 – Inmate Medical & Mental Health Services 

 
1. RFP p. 2, Background: Please clarify the vendor’s involvement with Huber inmates. 

 
Huber inmates are not typically under the care of jail physician however medication set up has 
been done by jail nurse. 

 
2. RFP p. 4, Vendor Supplied Information: Typically, bidders can mark parts of their proposal as 

confidential and proprietary. Please confirm that bidders can mark parts of their proposal as 
confidential, not to be disclosed in the public record. 
 
Items marked as “confidential and proprietary” will not be accepted as part of the submitted 
proposal.   
 

3. RFP p. 5, Termination by County for Clause: Are there terms for rights of termination by the 
vendor?  
 
Rights for vendors under the section “Termination by County for Clause” are as defined on page 
5 of RFP:   
 
“If the vendor fails to fulfill its obligations under the contract resulting from this RFP in a 
timely and proper manner, or violates any of its provisions, County may thereupon have the 
right to terminate the agreement by giving thirty (30) days written notice of termination, 
return receipt required, specifying the alleged violations and effective date of termination.  
The contract may not be terminated if, upon receipt of the notice, the vendor cures the 
alleged violation within 30 days.  In the event of termination, Marinette County will only be 
liable for services rendered and expenses incurred through the date of termination and not 
for the uncompleted portion and for any materials services purchased or paid for by the 
vendor for use in completing the contract.” 

 
4. RFP p. 7: Where is section V.P Average Daily Population for pricing? Please confirm the ADP that 

should be used for bidding purposes. 
 
Disregard the VP section.   See attached Monthly Jail Population to formulate your own  trends  
and analysis for quoting 
 

5. RFP p. 7: Please provide a copy of Executive Order 11246.  
 

Executive Order 11246 may be found at: 
http://www.eeoc.gov/eeoc/history/35th/thelaw/eo-11246.html 
 

6. RFP p. 8: Based on the size of the facility, all standards of the NCCHC and the ACA may not be 
able to be met with the current staffing levels. Please indicate which specific standards the 
vendor should comply with.  
 

http://www.eeoc.gov/eeoc/history/35th/thelaw/eo-11246.html


NCCHC Definition: 
Qualified Mental Health Professionals: Includes psychiatrists, psychologists, psychiatric social 
workers, psychiatric nurses and others who by virtue of their education, credentials and 
experience are permitted by law to evaluate and care for the mental health needs of patients. 

 
ACA Definition: 
Qualified Mental Health Person:  Staff who performs clinical duties for mentally ill patients, for 
example, physicians, psychologists, nurses and social workers in accordance with each health 
care professional’s scope of training and applicable licensing, certification and regulatory 
requirements. 

 
7. RFP p. 8: Is Master’s level training required for the Mental Health Professional?  

 
No. 

 
8. RFP p. 8: What is the minimum number of hours for the training program? 

 
Minimum required hours are in Wisconsin DOC code 350 for staff.  Inmate training is ongoing 
throughout the year and specific to each individual inmate’s needs. 
 

9. RFP p. 9, Staff Schedule: The RFP requires on-site nursing coverage 40 hours per week, “with 
guaranteed 24/7 coverage.” Please clarify what is meant by “guaranteed 24/7 coverage. 
 
Ability to contact MD by phone for emergency instructions as needed. 
 

10. RFP p. 9, Staff Schedule: The RFP requires healthcare and mental health staff response to 
request within 15 minutes. Is that online if said staff are on-site, or does this require them to be 
on-call and accessible to the site within 15 minutes? Please clarify.  

 
On site personnel will respond as needed.  On call personnel must be available to return calls to 
on duty jail staff within 15 minutes on message being left. 
 

11. RFP p. 9, Staff Schedule: Is the County requiring coverage for all holidays? Please confirm.  
 

40 hours a week means 40 hours a week.  Hours within the week of a holiday maybe adjusted. 
 

12. RFP p. 10, TB testing for staff: Will the successful bidder be responsible for serum and supplies?  
 

Yes.  
 
How many MCSO staff receive TB tests annually?  
 
Approximately 30.  
 

13. RFP p. 10, medical and mental health services for inmates from other counties and government 
agencies: Will the successful bidder be responsible for expenses related to medication and 
supplies for these individuals?  
 



The successful bidder will be responsible for all non-Huber inmates. 
 

14. RFP p. 11, employee evaluations: Employment law may prevent some access to or disclosure of 
employee evaluations. Please clarify the requirement.   

 
Disregard. 
 

15. RFP p. 15, medical equipment: Is the fax machine part of the printer or is a separate one 
supplied by the pharmacy?  

 
The fax, computer and printer are supplied and maintained by county. 
 

16. RFP p. 16: Please clarify why the pricing form includes hourly rates for physician and nurse? 
What should be included in this rate (i.e., benefits, taxes)?   

 
Base hourly wages. 
 
Is this to be used for staffing reconciliation?  

 
Yes. 
 

17. Which Jail Management System is used at the MCJ?   
 

HTE Sunguard.  AS 400. 
 
 

18. The pool is only $10,000. How much more are is being spent on offsite charges annually? 
  

Over the past 24 months an estimation amount of offsite health care cost has exceeded 
$25,000. 
   

19. Who performs on-site suicide risk assessment for your facility and what level of licensure do 
they carry?  
 
Contracted Mental Health Provider (when on site) otherwise our county Mental Health crisis 
workers (ADAPT). 
 

20. Do you require a 4 hour per week anger management service for the inmates?  
 

Yes, or appropriate behavioral modification programing. 
 

21.  Are alternative bids acceptable?  
 

Bibs can be submitted with different options as long as they include the basic RPF required 
items  

22.  What is the average length of stay for your inmates? 
 
   74 days . 



23.  Can you provide the number of TB skin tests the facility provides for the inmates each year?  
   
  No. 
 
24.  Can you provide an explanation of the 4 hour per week anger management course?  
 

Inmates attend classes in a group setting to learn alternative options for anger and behavioral 
modifications.  
 

  a)  Who provides the course (mental health)?  
 
     Course materials are provided by the jail.  
 

  b)  How many inmates attend?  
 
        Up to 12 inmates per week. 
 
  c)  What topics are discussed?  
 
       How to control your temper- alternatives to anger- self control assuming responsibility. 
 
25.  During the period March 2014 to the present, how much of the $10,000 per annum Financial 

Cap amount has been returned to the County per year?  
 
  (0)  
 
26.  During the period March 2014 to the present, how much have costs exceeded the $10,000 per 

annum Financial Cap amount per year?  
 
  Claims are still being processed for (1) critical care inpatient inmate from June of 2015. A safe 

estimate of accumulated cost could exceed the $10,000 threshold. 
 

27. Can you explain a little bit more as to what you're expecting from an Annual Independent 

Compliance Evaluation?  

Provide all requested information and documentation for the Wisconsin Jail inspector and make 

staff available for questions and answer sessions. 

 

28. Looking at your list of medical equipment provided, there are a number of basic items that any 

clinic would need, including stethoscopes, blood pressure cuffs etc.  Are you expecting us to 

provide every and all additional medical equipment?  I'm just making sure of where you stand 

on this.  



Basic items are the responsibility of the Health care provider- Major items such as medication 

carts, exam table replacement of wheel chair are the Counties. 

29. Do you have issues with our mental health professionals using telemedicine for the majority 

(but not all) of the services they provide for you?  

We would be willing to consider this on a limited basis, however on site Mental Health care is 

still required.  

30. Would you be willing to discuss the possibility of a longer "no-cause termination" notification 

period?  It is currently set at 60, but wondering if it would be possible for that to be lengthened 

to 90 days?  

No. 

31. Just making sure on this issue...  a Nurse Practitioner would be acceptable in lieu of a MD or PA?   

NP is not out of the question (however the bid should reflect quote options for each NP Vs. MD 

and PA).  

32. Would you be willing to consider more provider hours on-site?  We would definitely recommend 

a bit more than is currently stated in the RFP. 

 Your quote submission must contain the minimum asked hour in the RFP, and if you wish to 

submit any addition option to reflect an increase on hours you may do so.  

33. In the RFP you mentioned that our medical personnel would need to be available within 15 

minutes... I'm just ensuring that means it could be via telephone?  

Yes. 

34. You stated in the RFP that you are requiring 40 hours of nursing coverage each week.  Is it safe 

to assume you would consider having more than 1.0 FTE RN's on-site each week?  Given your 

ADP, we may recommend more than 1.0. The requirement in the RFP is for 40 hours of Nurse 

coverage.   

If you think that more coverage is necessary you may submit an additional option quote to 

reflect the increase in suggested hours.  

35. Just wanting to clarify costs - are you expecting us to pay for all radiology exams (x-rays etc)?  

Hazardous waste removal fees?  Medical supplies each month?  

All x-rays ordered by your DR will be your responsibility to pay, along with waste disposal and 

medical supplies. 

 



36. We would certainly recommend having all routine prenatal care conducted off-site by a local 

obstetrical provider.  However, in the RFP it references that we would be responsible for all of 

that care.  Are you willing to reconsider that position?  

We currently have the contracted Health care nurse set up all of these off site appointments and 

follow up with Rx scripts and prenatal vitamins.  

37. Are you expecting us to pay for all medications for detainees?  We typically argue against that 

situation and are wondering if you're willing to consider an alternative plan?  

Proposal submittals can contain options for both full Rx drug responsibility and partial. 

 
 
 

 
Marinette County Avg. Monthly Jail Populations 

   

       

 2015 Daily 
Head Count 

2014 
Daily 
Head 
Count 

2013 Daily 
Head 
Count 

2012 Daily 
Head Count 

2011 Daily 
Head Count 

2010 Daily 
Head Count 

January 113.00 136.00 132.74 92.19 105.61 116.32 

February 124.43 131.25 143.96 101.79 115.46 126.18 

March 137.58 124.74 140.58 113.52 120.19 123.42 

April 130.80 122.87 140.67 122.03 114.03 126.30 

May 133.71 119.77 139.45 107.61 99.19 120.68 

June 118.17 129.03 136.97 105.17 95.13 114.07 

July 0.00 133.65 125.84 103.52 98.74 103.94 

August 0.00 132.81 127.71 112.74 108.32 101.00 

September 0.00 135.07 126.77 127.23 118.03 99.27 

October 0.00 136.48 127.16 128.00 107.42 93.26 

November 0.00 130.00 132.40 123.00 102.63 95.17 

December 0.00 107.84 131.26 125.45 89.29 100.00 

       
Yr Avgs. 63.14 128.29 133.79 113.52 106.17 109.97 

% Increase  from 
2004 

-20.5% 61.6% 68.5% 43.0% 33.7% 38.5% 

       
       
High Month   October February October March April 

       
Low Month   Decembe

r 
July January December October 

       

      

      



 

      

2009 Daily Head 
Count 

2008 Daily 
Head Count 

2007 
Daily 
Head 
Count 

2006 Daily 
Head 
Count 

2005 Daily 
Head 
Count 

 

 

107.00 111.71 93.77 95.26 69.35  

107.71 106.21 89.21 103.93 81.00  

110.55 112.42 98.58 91.39 92.77  

108.00 110.67 96.20 80.23 102.27  

105.61 111.58 100.74 90.68 106.45  

120.43 110.00 108.30 93.13 106.40  

130.61 111.35 109.16 101.55 105.26  

120.10 108.45 110.81 105.97 109.19  

118.33 118.40 111.10 106.33 112.90  

128.10 123.19 119.97 106.74 108.55  

118.23 119.13 114.63 106.17 95.90  

114.00 112.26 105.35 91.84 84.71  

      

115.72 112.95 104.82 97.77 97.90  

45.7% 42.3% 32.0% 23.1% 23.3%  

      

      

July October October October September  

      
May  February February April January  

      

 

 

 

 


